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SENATOR PAUL A. SARLO (Chair): Good morning,
everybody. Welcome to the Senate Budget and Appropriations Committee
hearing of December 5, 2012.

May I have a roll call, please?

MS. BRENNAN (Committee Aide): Senator Beck. (no
response)

SENATOR SARLO: She will be here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Thompson.

SENATOR THOMPSON: Here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Oroho.

SENATOR OROHO: Here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator O'Toole.

SENATOR BUCCO: He’s on his way.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Bucco.

SENATOR BUCCO: Here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Sarlo.

SENATOR SARLO: Here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Sweeney.

SENATE PRESIDENT SWEENEY: Here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Weinberg.

SENATOR WEINBERG: Here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Greenstein.

SENATOR GREENSTEIN: Here.

MS. BRENNAN: Senator Cunningham. (no response)

Senator Ruiz. (no response)

Senator Van Drew. (no response)
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And Senator Pou is not here today.

SENATOR SARLO: Thank you.

Let me just take care of some housekeeping items first.

Again, I want to thank all of the members of this Committee.
And our staff, on a very short notice, have put together-- This is our third
hearing that we’ve conducted. And I am very proud of this Committee and
how we’ve accomplished a lot in such a short time and in a very bipartisan
manner. Again, I want to compliment, as I've done at every hearing, our
Senate President, Stephen Sweeney; our Minority Leader, Tom Kean; and
the Governor’s Office for cooperating with us in providing the high-level
cabinet members to work with us.

The focus of these hearings, through this Budget Committee,
has been to provide us with a snapshot both before, during, and in the
aftermath. And now, as we’ve heard from folks who have been on the
ground in the aftermath, we are Vbeginning to proceed as to how do we
rebuild and how do we do it smart -- smarter and better -- in a very
economic way? And we realize the dollars that are going to be associated
with this effort and that’s why we’re doing it through the Budget
Committee.

Just for the Committee’s sake, we are scheduled to meet on
Tuesday in Highlands at Henry Hudson Regional High School at 3:00.
There will be a walking tour before that. More details will be forthcoming.
That will be a public hearing for members of the entire State of New Jersey,
but I'm assuming we’ll hear a lot of folks from the coastline. As more

details of the (indiscernible) schedules, we will get it out to you.
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Today we have a long list of folks who we're going to be hearing
from. For those who I call upon to testify, I'm going to ask you to keep
your remarks concise, brief, and to the point. This way we can have some
questions and answers. We're going to be hearing from the electric utility
executives initially; then we’re going to hear from the Board of Public
Utilities; we’re going to hear from Passaic Valley Sewerage. We're going to
hear, on a limited basis, from the Jersey Natural Gas and the Jersey
American Water Company with the impact of -- turning back service to the
barrier island, especially the northern barrier island, and the impact on that
system and when we're going to see service there. And we're also, through
this process, we're going to hear from the cable and wireless folks and the
impacts on their system -- both from Verizon as well as Cablevision.

Let me begin. Our first witness I am going to call is-- And
before I do that, I just want to thank all those who have changed their
schedules. I know you all have very busy schedules, like all of us, and
you're also involved in the aftermath of this storm. I appreciate you all
changing your schedules on a very short notice to be here today to work
with this Committee. So I appreciate that. And I mean that sincerely;
many of you had 48 hours notice to change your schedules, and you
accomplished it. So that just shows you a commitment to our state.

Senator Bucco, would you like to provide, on behalf of the
Minority party, any remarks?

SENATOR BUCCO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Yes, I'd like to thank you for scheduling all of these meetings,
being this is our third. Our Monday meeting, I think, was very informative

with Teterboro and Moonachie, and the devastation that was brought to
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them with this storm. And thanking all of the CEOs again for coming to
our meetings so that we can get a better understanding of what we went
through, what you went through, what your companies went through, and
see how we can, in the future, correct some of the issues that arose through
this storm. So I think it is important that we continue these meetings,
hearing from everyone who is involved, and even hearing from citizens in
the future of some of the complaints that were there. And again, I thank
you for that, and we look forward to hearing what our CEOs have to say
today.

Thank you.

SENATOR SARLO: I now call up Ralph LaRossa, President

and CEO of Public Service Electric and Gas.
RALPH A. LaROSSA: Thank you, Mr. Chairman, thank you,
Senators, for having me here today. I look forward to the opportunity to
just give you a brief update on a little bit about the storm from our
perspective.

But first I wanted to take this opportunity to thank all of you
for the support that you gave us throughout the storm. I know that the
pressures that were on you from your constituents were tremendous, and
the conversations that we had were very helpful. I want to thank the
Administration for the support that they gave us throughout the storm, and
specifically the Board of Public Utilities. Their ongoing efforts to eliminate
barriers and challenges that were put in front of us were very helpful. And,
for what it’s worth, I also know that we got quite a bit of support from the

Federal Government and their efforts.
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But none of this would have been possible without the
employees of all the utilities -- not just PSE&G employees, but as I go
through this presentation I ask you to think about the 4,000 folks who
came here to help us. And specifically one individual who passed away at
the age of 52, from Henkels and McCoy; he was a contractor who came to
assist us and passed away from a massive heart attack in the middle of the
storm. Folks gave everything they had to try to get the customers back in
the State of New Jersey, and that just exemplifies some of the work that
these individuals put in.

So T'll just talk about three things that I think are really
important to the Committee: One, I'll talk a little bit about the
preparations that we had done as a company; I'll talk a little bit about what
happened during the storm; and then I'll talk about what I think is most
important, and that’s what we can all work on to continue to improve the
restoration efforts here in the State of New Jersey. Because although I'm
not a climatologist and I won’t get involved in the debate on climate
change, I will tell you that storms, as I was growing up here in New Jersey,
did not make a left-hand turn into the state in the past; they used to make a
left-hand turn into North Carolina. And I heard the Chairman of Con
Edison give some facts out that I thought were very important at a meeting
last week. There was one tornado in the State of New York in the 1960s;
one in the 1970s; one in the 1980s; one in the 1990s; three that toolk place
from 2000 to 2010. And since 2010, there has been eight tornadoes in the
State of New York. So I'll just leave that as some backdrop. We all have to
rethink the way we do things, and certainly some of the challenges that we

faced here will give us some opportunities.
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I'll just give you a little bit about our preparation work. We
had Jxnown the storm was coming for quite some time -- for about a week in
advance. The first thing that we did was call a mutual aid conference with
the other utilities in the Northeast. And through that process we were able
to bring in 1,000 additional line personnel. Our normal workforce is about
700; so we had brought 1,000 in, in advance, based upon the forecast that
we had seen. And a number of tree trimming contractors as well; I think
about another 700 or so that came in to help us in advance of the storm.

So we were prepared for what we expected to be a very big wind
event; and it turned out that we did have a wind event, but it was even
greater than we had expected.

We also, during that time, prepared ourselves by doing all of
our checklists that we have in place -- things such as making sure that all
our generators were working; that was very important at our call centers,
which were out of power for several days as a result of the storms, so we had
our backup generators running. We had gone in and done a lot of work
with our-- Conversations, again, with the State to look at some of the
flooding challenges that we had seen up in the northern part of the state
before. Great work by the DEP, looking at those reservoirs in advance this
year and lowering some of those so we didn’t have the challenges that we
had in Milford in the past. So a lot of positives that we did from a
preparation standpoint -- but the most important one being to get the
additional personnel here to help us throughout the storm.

Once the storm hit, it hit us in a way that we just did not
expect -- just to be blunt about that. I looked at the weather forecast that

we received on the 29th of October and, to be very specific about that, the
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weather forecast was correct on one thing: the amount of rain that we were
going to get. A quarter inch to three-quarters of an inch -- that was right
on. The wind speeds that were expected were between 30 and 45 miles an
hour with gusts of 40 to 65. What actually took place was 40 to 65 mile an
hour constant wind with gusts of 90 miles per hour. On the top of our
building in Newark, the very top of our building, we measured the gauges at
100 miles an hour during the peak of the storm. Not anything that we had
expected, nor we had ever seen before in that area.

The storm surge was projected, back on the 29, to be 3 to 6
feet of storm surge. We actually saw 11 to 14 feet of storm surge as the
storm approached.

So we wound up with two different storms in the PSE&G
territory. One was a storm surge that impacted the Newark Bay area; and
I'll talk to you a little bit about that and the flooding -- what took place
there. And then we also had the high wind speeds that we had throughout
the entire service territory.

So we’ll start with the storm surge. As I said, about 14 feet
came into the area. That impacted a number of our switching stations.
And 1 just want to pause here just to explain our system, and I think it’s
important. You all know we have generating plants that generate the
power, put it on a transmission line. The transmission lines then bring the
power to our switching stations. Switching stations then provide power out
to substations, and substations then deliver power out to the streets -- that
you see power lines in the streets. Why is that so important to understand?
What was impacted for us around Newark Bay were 11 separate switching

stations. Those switching stations then fed substations. So when I was
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having conversations about Newark and bringing back the power into
Newark, it was important for us to make the repairs in those switching
stations before we could start to energize the substations. Once we energize
the substations then we start to work on the streets.

So we went through that process. The flooding was so dramatic
and so quick that we had several personnel within PSE&G who were not
even able to escape those switching stations that they were manning so that
they could take proactive action. We had eight individuals who were in a
construction trailer, floating around in our Essex switching station for over
eight hours before they were rescued. 1 know County Executive
Difrancenso came in himself to try to help when we were bringing in
Humvees and other things to try to get in there to get some of those folks
out. It was a complete -- from our standpoint -- a complete disaster waiting
to happen. They were saved, they were taken care of. Everything was
copacetic at the end of the day from their standpoint, but it just gives you
an idea of the magnitude of the flooding -- how quickly it came in and how
difficult it was for us to take action. .

We had sandbagged and put up barriers around 11 different
locations that we had expected flooding to come into based upon the types
of storm and the forecast we had. So 11 stations we took proactive action
at; those were not the right 11, because we did not expect what happened in
Newark Bay. I don’t think any of us did. And that’s what wound up taking
the longest amount of time.

So overall, 1.7 million customers were impacted; about 1
million of them were impacted associated with that flooding area, and the

rest were associated with the high winds that we had.

8



You're viewing an archived copy from the New Jersey State Library1/30

So just talking about the high winds for a second and the
impacts there, and then I'll bring it to what our suggestions are.

The high winds-- You saw the damage. 1 can show you
thousands of pictures about what was out in the streets. The only way you
make those repairs -- and youll hear this, I think, from the folks at
FirstEnergy -- is to have additional resources here to help us. We were all
asking for every resource that we could get from the time that we started to
have these mutual aid calls. We were continuing to ask for additional
personnel. You saw an increase in the response rate here in New Jersey and
additional restoration taking place about halfway through the storm as
crews were released from the Delmarva Peninsula -- as that workload started
to be reduced. You also saw a big push at the end of the storm when the
folks up in the Cape Cod region released their crews so they could come
down after the nor’easter passed by their service territory.

So we were all working together to bring these resources, but
the fact that this storm hit such a massive area required us to bring crews in
from as far away as California. There were folks who were flown in; they
wound up helping out on (indiscernible) and Con Ed, but they were flown
in from California on transport trucks to try to get here to help us in the
restoration process.

It’s hand-to-hand combat out there; again, I think the crews did
a fantastic job in the work that they did. The number one reason -- and the
number one thing that, as I'll get into the recommendations -- that caused
all that damage were the trees. We all love our trees, but it’s time for us to
take a step back, and I'll talk about that a little bit in our recommendations,

and see what we want to do about dealing with the tree trimming activities.
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So at high level, two storms: one storm surge that came up
through Newark Bay, the second one was the overhead damage that we had
from the windstorm.

So let me move to what I think is most important, which is
where we go, going forward.

There were-- The storm surge is something we certainly need to
think about. And whether we talk about raising stations or lowering
stations, or moving them sideways or upside down, none of that really
matters. What’s important to us to build in additional redundancy in the
system. If we solve for a storm surge, we didn’t solve for an earthquake. If
we solve for an earthquake, we didn’t solve for an airplane crash, God
forbid. If we solve for something else-- We need to build additional
redundancy in the grid, and you see us starting to do that. I know at
PSE&G we’ve gone from a capital program of about $300 million to $1.9
billion this year. That’s all building in additional transmission and
additional redundancy into the grid. We need to continue to do that. So
you're going to hear us talk more and more about redundancy. I absolutely
agree -- we’ll raise the stations, but I don’t want anybody to have a false
sense of security.

We had done a tabletop exercise which identified the exact
problem that we had in Newark and in Essex County. And we had done
that two years ago. When we did it, the tabletop exercise was about an
airliner that was diverted and crashed on entrance into Newark. That was
our tabletop exercise. And we identified that there was a single point of

failure. So what we did was we went to PJM; we asked PJM, the planner for
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the transmission system, to give us additional redundancy in that grid.
They approved that project. We went ahead and we were assigned that just
within the last nine months. And about a month before the storm hit we
actually purchased the land on Littleton Avenue in Newark to make that
investment. So we’re looking at that and you’re to continue to see us
looking at it. That redundancy is what’s extremely important. So that’s
one piece of the puzzle for us.

The second piece of the puzzle for us is the tree trimming. I
just ask you to go back and think about 2003. FERC got it right:
Whatever they did at the Federal Energy Regulatory Commission was right.
They put very stringent rules in place about tree trimming. This isn’t the
Board of Public Utilities’ fault, this isn’t your fault, this isn’t-- This is the
process that’s been in place, and we have an opportunity to fix this. Each
individual town has their individual shade tree commissions, and there is
one that I've had personal conversations with that will tell you, “We’re not
going to trim anything that’s bigger than this.” And they hold up their
index finger. We're not going to have good reliability when those are the
types of things that we’re doing. We need to go in and spend the effort on
it. And I said “spend the effort” because I don’t want to say spend the
money. The amount of money is really not going to change much. All of
you who are in the construction industry -- you know. It’s the windshield
time, it’s the time for the truck to get there, it’s the time for the individual
to get there. Once they're up in the air, if we trim 6 feet or we trim 8 feet
isn’t a real big difference. And when we have to go 8 feet and we’re going
to impair the tree, what we need to think about is how do we lower it,

maybe replace that tree with something that’s not going to grow up as high
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in the future. So the tree trimming is the next area that I would suggest
that we really have to focus on.

And then the last thing that I would say, if you took a look at
three big things, is we have to talk about the communications protocols.
And T’ll just talk for our company: There are 236 mayors in our service
territory. I could spend the entire day personally talking to all 236 and I
wouldn’t get through it. We went out and I think we spoke, personally,
over the length of the storm, with 100 of them, face-to-face. But to have
236 conversations, day in and day out, it’s not going to work. We need to
use technology in the best way we can to get our information out.

We're going to implement whatever policy comes out of this
conversation. You could do it multiple ways. I don’t think we’ll ever solve
the Blackberry era, the iPhone era, until we have communication at the
customer’s home. I'm not going to advocate for AMI, I'm not going to
advocate for the-- We need two-way communication. The utilities have
come and talked about this for the last seven or eight years; Atlantic City
Electric did it as recently as this week. We did it back in-- And prior to
that, as well, we've done it back in 2007, where we completed pilot
programs in the state and showed that those opportunities exist. It’s
expensive -- it’s expensive. But there are ways that we can do it. Maybe we
can find different types of mechanisms, work with different vendors. We
should consider that as a policy going forward, because I think the
consumers are demanding it and it’s something that we should consider
implementing going forward.

I don’t know what the right answer is; I'm not looking to create

some big programs so we can make a lot of additional rate-based
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investments. What we're trying to do is figure out the best way to
communicate with the customers.

Thank you.

SENATOR SARLO: Thank you, Ralph.

Let me try to take a couple of -- two or three things right off the
table here, and I think big picture items. And I was on a phone call with
the Colonel of the State Police, the Governor, and others on the morning of
the 29" when the meteorologists said the storm surge-- That we were going
to see an unprecedented surge, especially along the barrier island. I guess
what took PSE&G by surprise and others was that the surge would extend,
not just along the barrier island, but it would come up into the Newark Bay,
Hackensack River. Is that what you meant-- Was the surge in Newark Bay
and Hackensack, is that what took your utility by surprise?

MR. LaROSSA: Yes, I think that that conversation got a lot
more heated as we got closer to the storm. And if you think about our
switching stations, there’s no way to build barriers around.those switching
stations. It’s physically impossible to do that within two days at the heights
that would have been required. So when we were looking at the storm
surge we were not expecting it to come into the Newark Bay area at that
speed, to that height.

SENATOR SARLO: I know the answer to this question; I
think it’s just important to hear it from you and to put it out there. Many
of these substations are located in very low-lying areas along river banks, in
flood plains, essentially because mayors like me and others don’t approve

them in viable lands. We approve them for areas -- low-lying areas -- along
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the river banks. And I'm correct in saying that? Is that why many of these
are constructed in those areas?

MR. LaROSSA: No. Iwould think that that’s part of it, but to
be fair to everyone as well, let’s think about where they were constructed.
These stations were built 100 years ago, in many cases. And they were built
where the industrial load was. You don’t want to have drops in voltage, so
back then they built them as close to the low pockets as they could possibly
build them. And so the ports were where the industry was. So they built
them around the ports areas of 100 years ago. Times have changed. We
need to think about whether or not, based upon conductors and other
things, we can move them back a little bit. But again, that’s just solving
one of the issues. We need to build redundancy into the system.

SENATOR SARLO: You talked a lot about the redundancy.
And it’s one of your first recommendations. We all know what happens
during the storm and the aftermath, and I complimented you personally
and all your crews for the effort that they did in working hard to restore
power.

But let’s just talk about the next step. I read an article in the
paper today -- I wish it was released here at our Committee hearing, but -- it
says, “Utility says it lost at least $250 million so far and its customers may
end up paying much of that.” That was in an article in the Bergen Record
this morning. What is the dollars, the real dollars that you're looking at for
an infrastructure to create this redundant system? And where’s that coming
from? Is it going to come-- Where do you think it should be coming from?
Should it be coming from the Federal government? Should it be coming

from us -- our State coffers? What is PSE&G going to put into this?
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MR. LaROSSA: So let’s start with the press release that we
gave yesterday, which is between $250 million and $300 million; that’s our
estimated cost right now for the, I'll say the band-aids to put thé system
back together again. That’s to restore the power, not to rebuild it. So
there’s a very, very -- I think it’s very important to understand that the
numbers that we talked about are the restoration, not the rebuild.

To rebuild a substation, on average, it will cost you around $2
million. We can make a decision-- I can’t answer your question now about
how many. To rebuild a switching station is over $100 million. And, again,
I can’t answer your question now about how many. The reason for that is
we need to decide what are we building to. Are we going to build to a
category 2, 3? Category 4?2 What do we want to build to? What
additional redundancy do we want build into the system? If you look at the
maps, we should not have had, with the type of storm we had, the level of
storm surge if you look at what we expected. It just wasn’t there.

So we need to answer the question first: What do we want to
build to? And then I can give you the answer about what the long-term
cost could be.

SENATOR SARLO: Will PSE&G be looking for us here, the
State legislators, this Budget Committee, for capital investment -- for dollars
for capital investment? Do you believe PSE&G will be looking to us?

MR. LaROSSA: No. I think-- Look, the utilities function is to
bring investors to the solution. We can access the capital markets. What
we need to do is have the clear policy. Again, I'll point back to FERC.
FERC has created a mechanism in place that allowed clear signals to the

investment community that the regulations were in place and the support
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was there for the investment. FERC didn’t just-- You know, we all deal
with our kids, and you can deal with a carrot or you can have a stick. FERC
has carrots to induce investment; we can then get investors to bring their
dollars to the table. We don’t have to ask the State for it. We can make
that because of the returns that are allowed. And the stick that FERC put
in place is some additional penalties. And this Administration and the
committees have started to have those conversations already. So a
combination of those two things has served FERC well; and I would support
both of those.

SENATOR SARLO: One of your recommendations-- We're
going to-- As we go through this process, you -- working with your
engineers and your planners -- are going to come up with recommendations
on the redundancy; how to retrofit the substations and the switching
stations. On the communication end, I think one frustrating thing we all
were frustrated with -- and I know you said that to a bunch of mayors in a
meeting that I attended right after the storm -- I think many people don’t
realize that a power company does not know when I'm sitting in my home
and I don’t have power. I think many people-- Most folks think when they
go out of power, you know automatically. There is a switch in your control
room that says, “Mrs. Jones, 140 8th Street, is out of power.” I think that

caught a lot of people by surprise that the power companies don’t know

that.

MR. LaROSSA: Right.

SENATOR SARLO: And we all know what the solution is
there. Can you give us a roundabout -- if you were to put a
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communications smart meters -- 1 guess that’s the term -- what it could cost?
What would be the infrastructure cost?

MR. LaROSSA: Just a rough estimate, a smart meter
installation would cost you between $500 million and $700 million,
depending upon what solution you chose to put in place there. That’s an
investment that you can make and, again, we can go ahead and do that if
the policy supported it.

So I don’t know if you need that or if there is something less
than that that we can do. But I think we need to start the conversation
about the two-way communications.

SENATOR SARLO: And that would be just for PS territory --
Public Service--

MR. LaROSSA: That’s correct.

SENATOR SARLO: --is $500 million to $700 million.

MR. LaROSSA: That’s for 2.2 million electric meters and 1.6
million gas. So you could just extrapolate that out for the rest of the state.

SENATOR SARLO: So as you were turning on large segments,
I guess the frustrating part was the folks -- the smaller, local people who
were out of power -- the only way you knew about it was through the
county OEMs and the local OEM coordinators calling--

MR. LaROSSA: Or if the customer called back. So we look
silly; we really look silly as an industry. Not as a company -- as an industry.
This is across the board. In the entire country, there are 43 million of these
smart meters that will be out there by the end of this year. So think about

that for all of the customers who are in-- We look antiquated.
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So we’ve turned on a switching station in Newark; we think
we've got a whole bunch of Newark back. Now we have to turn on a
substation. But every time I do that we’re telling the customer, “We think
you're back. Are you back?” Then we turn on the feeder to their location.
“Are you back? We're still not sure you're back.” Then we get down to the
individual street. “Are you back?” Then we get down to the cul-de-sac.
“Are we back?” And then into the actual service into a home.

SENATOR SARLO:  There lies the frustration in the
communication.

MR. LaROSSA: Extremely frustrating for the consumer.

SENATOR SARLO: That, I believe, is one of the things we
need to work in concert with the utilities, BPU, and the industry on -- how
to solve that communication problem for future storms. Because I think
that was the biggest frustration that I heard.

I'm going to turn it over to the Senate President. Ijust have a
final thought and one final comment.

We all know the failures of the LIPA power supply company
from news reports in the New York market. There has been discussions
that Public Service Electric and Gas will be managing or taking over LIPA.
What kind of resources are you going to need here in New Jersey-- What
kind of resources are we going to be pulling from Jersey for your company
to go manage LIPA, and should we be concerned as legislators?

MR. LaROSSA: We were awarded, and we take it as an honor,
that we were picked over all the other utilities in the country to manage the
system. LIPA put out a bid to be their manager of the grid. National Grid

is currently providing that service. We take over on January 1, 2014, to do
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that -- provide that service. We are providing, at the top level, about 12
folks who are going to be providing different support management services
to LIPA. That is out of our 6,500 employees -- is not something I think this
Committee or the State of New Jersey should have the least bit of concern
about. We think-- So we've been giving some promotion opportunities to
people as we go through this. And we're looking at some of the folks who
are over there, because there are some very good, talented people there as
well. What we really think we’re going to be bringing to the table is our
processes. There are things that we do differently than National Grid does.
And 1 think if we implement some of those processes there the consumers
on Long Island are going to see some benefit.

SENATOR SARLO: Make sure we get smart meters before
they do, and LIPA. (laughter) We’re going to hold you to that.

MR. LaROSSA: Okay.

SENATOR SARLO: TI'm going to turn it over to Senate
President. I just want to caution the members: we do have the executives
from JCP&L here, as well as BPU. So just keep that in mind as you ask
questions, because I don’t want redundant questions.

SENATE PRESIDENT SWEENEY: Thank you, Chairman.

I just, honestly, have one question, Ralph. When we talked
about your substations flooding and how we couldn’t plan -- they’ve been
there a really long time. Is there any history where they flooded before?

MR. LaROSSA: Not those substations, to the best of our
knowledge. Our records only go back a certain amount. And Senator, I
also would tell you that a lot of people said, “They’re so old. Why aren’t

you replacing them, taking them out?” I just remind everybody: Some of
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the old homes that we live in, the 2-by-4s are real; the ones we buy now
may not be actually -- if you measured them -- 2-by-4. So we need to put
the technology on top of some of those old locations, and we'll see some
improvements there. And that’s what we’ve been trying to work on.

SENATE PRESIDENT SWEENEY: That’s kind of what I was
trying to figure out. You know, no one wants to talk about the climate
change, but these switch yards are actually, even though they were close to
flood plain areas, whatever you want to say -- they never flooded. So, I
mean, again my big thing out of these hearings -- and the Chairman’s done
a great job with this -- is we really need to know from you, and the other
companies, how we fix this or how do we go about going forward.

So I was just-- I wanted to hear from you: have they flooded
before? Because, you know, we hear about the 100-year storm that used to
come every 100 years. Now it’s coming every year. So I appreciate the fact
that they haven’t flooded in the past.

SENATOR SARLO: Senator Bucco.

SENATOR BUCCO: Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

Good morning, Ralph. Thank you for being here this morning
and changing your schedule so that we can hear from you exactly what
some of the problems were with your utility and all.

One thing that you had said, and I want to get it clarified: tree
trimming. You said now with shade tree commissions in individual towns,
are telling you they only trim--

MR. LaROSSA: Certain towns are more aggressive in that

aspect than others.
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SENATOR BUCCO: But don’t you have the ability to override
that and trim?

MR. LaROSSA: To the best of my knowledge, unless we’re
missing something, that’s a local decision that’s made in each one of the
towns.

SENATOR BUCCO: Well, because being a former Mayor I
know shade tree commissions are usually volunteers from the town and
don’t know exactly what the problems are with your utilities, with branches
in there. Everybody knows, yes, if a branch comes down and knocks out a
wire. But I think you’re more in tune and apt to know what to do, and
where to trim and how to trim, rather than just a shade tree commission.
And if they’re stopping you, I think there’s something wrong with that also,
because we have seen what happened with this storm with a lot of the trees
and branches coming down and knocking out additional homes.

MR. LaROSSA: Yes. And Senator, I think, again, it’s not just
the shade trees; sometimes we run into a consumer who is really, really
passionate about certain things. We lost a tree in front of the house where
I grew up. I went to see my parents and I can’t hit a Wiffle ball over it
anymore, like when I did when I was growing up. So you have to be
empathetic to all of that; I understand. But at some point I agree with you.
We need to do what'’s right to ensure the integrity of the system.

SENATOR BUCCO: Well, you know, it reminds me of an
incident that our Chairman told us about in his town -- where they wanted
to trim a tree and the man is hugging the tree. After the storm the tree was

in his house. Thank you.
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SENATOR SARLO: Just on the shade tree commission --
everybody understands shade tree commissions. They are, in most of their
municipal forms, charters. Shade tree commissions are appointed by the
mayor with no consent of the local governing body. They have a lot of
power once they sit and are appointed. Trust me -- I've done battle with
some of them in different capacities.

But those towns that are proactive had less trees come down
because they were proactive -- taking down dead trees and trees that were
trimmed ahead of time. There’s no doubt about it: Proactive public works,
proactive shade tree commissions faired much better.

MR. LaROSSA: Mayor Huttle did a fantastic job for us up in
that area. We had some challenges there last year. We had conversations
about it. He had us come in; he provided us with some of the air cover to
make those changes. And we saw a better performance.

SENATOR SARLO: Senator Weinberg, followed by Senator
O’Toole, followed by Senator Ruiz.

SENATOR WEINBERG: Good morning, Mr. LaRossa; thank
you for being here. And thank you for putting yourself forth. I've attended
several meetings: one right after Hurricane Irene, where we convened OEM
managers and mayors from the communities I represent, and you and
Chairman Hanna were both there to try to talk about what we should be
doing in the next storm -- not knowing it was going to come as quickly as it
did.

And then one after Hurricane Sandy that I did with our good

colleague Senator O'Toole.
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First of all, I have a question. And I hope it doesn’t sound
stupid, but it came up right last night at a local council meeting. A resident
got up and said, “PSE&G is stupid. Somebody was out in front of my
house from PSE&G putting new gas lines in.” I am quoting the resident,
more or less. “So I went out and spoke to that person and said, well, while

you're doing that, why don’t put underground wires in and take the
| overhead wires out,” And the answer was, “The gas division of PSE&G
doesn’t talk to the electric aspect of PSE&G.” So is that an appropriate
question, and is there some kind of coordination when that takes place?

MR. LaROSSA: There is not coordination between those two
entities. There are separate skill sets involved with the installation of the
gas installation and the electric. But that consumer can certainly ask for
and pay for that service to be put underground if they wanted it to. The
reason I say pay for -- each one of the-- Again, the way the rules are right
now are, there are designated underground service areas. And the purpose
for that is so that the consumers in the other areas are not picking up the
tab for the underground to one individual home. So the option exists for
anyone to ask us to do that. It’s a cost that would be incurred by that
customer at this point based upon the rules of replace.

SENATOR WEINBERG: Okay. But the basic answer is it’s
different skill sets.

MR. LaROSSA: Different skill sets.

SENATOR WEINBERG: So therefore when a street is open--

MR. LaROSSA: It’s the same reason that there are folks
standing by live wires who can’t repair them. Those are usually gas folks

who we have assisting us during the storm. They are there to provide safety
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for the public. And people ask the question, “Why aren’t you doing any
work?” They are just there to protect the safety of the public.

SENATOR WEINBERG: Okay, thank you for that.

And my second question -- you've talked about it quite a bit,
and I know it will be a topic of conversation here, and that’s
communication. I don’t think-- Well, I do know, and I suppose we all
know, that most people do not realize: You don’t know that my home is
out of power. And if you fix it, you don’t even know whether you fixed that
pump. Can you do some kind of-- When you send out your bills -- and I
get mine every month -- some kind of an explanation to people about the
next time this happens, and what kind of conditions you work under that
could be understood by the normal ratepayer?

MR. LaROSSA: That’s a very good suggestion. It’s something
we have to look at. Because what we live in every day, we assume
everybody else understands it. It’s just not accurate. So we need to get that
information out.

SENATOR WEINBERG: And I would assume you have your
list of priorities -- hospitals, nursing homes, municipal infrastructure,
whatever -- so that you know how to deal with the grids that feed those
kinds of places?

MR. LaROSSA: We try our best. We start with the hospitals
first -- that was our primary concern. We also had additional issues during
this storm that we hadn’t seen before, so we had a big focus on getting the
refineries back up and running -- which is not normally in the process. And
those types of requests come from the OEM offices. So we have a set list

that we've worked on, and it starts with the critical infrastructure the
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Department of Homeland Security has identified. And then we work our
way down that list to where we actually listen to the county OEMs; and
after the country OEMs, the municipal OEMs.

SENATOR WEINBERG: So if we know about buildings that
cater to senior citizens, etc., in our own communities--

MR. LaROSSA: Well, we should. Sometimes we can’t get to
them; sometimes we can. We had a conversation during the storm about
one specific one. It was an easy repair; it was not on our radar screen for
whatever reason. Those are the types of things we need to close down on,
on the communications front.

SENATOR WEINBERG: Okay. Well, I agree with our Senate
President and our Committee Chair. A lot of it had to do with
communications. I dealt with another one in one of the communities I
represent, where we got information you were going to be at a certain
switching station, I think, in Teaneck. Knowing the Teaneck folks,
somebody went down there to see, and you weren’t there. I don’t mean you
personally; but your crew wasn’t there. They were taken off someplace else.
So that created a big, “Oh, we can’t trust what they say to us.” So I think
people just-- The exigencies of the particular situation are not well
understood, even by our local elected officials. So I think you have to help
with an educational program.

MR. LaROSSA: And the challenge there that exists is, again,
there is a lot of change-out. Many of the local officials, even within the
councils that rotate the mayor position-- And just to keeping all those
(indiscernible) -- it’s not an excuse, it’s just a fact. We have to figure out a

way to get around it.
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SENATOR WEINBERG: Okay, thank you.

SENATOR SARLO: Senator O'Toole, followed by Senator
Ruiz. We're going to just-- For the Senators, let’s just focus on the PSE&G
service area.

SENATOR OTOOLE: Well, thank you, Chair.

I just want to follow up on a couple of important points. And
as Senator Weinberg stated, we are grateful, Ralph, that when we called
you, you came and did that face-to-face meeting on day 7 or 8 with our 15
or 20 mayors. And the reason we had to do that is because there was such a
disconnect at the local level. There was such a-- Information was being
chopped and miscommunicated. And it was extraordinarily helpful when
you took the time -- you were worn down, you were beaten down. You
came to Bergen County and we had what I believe was a pretty productive
roundtable. And it was at that time a lot of our towns -- Loretta’s and mine
-- we had a very direct conversation. And you saw soon thereafter a more
responsive, more targeted, more focused response team by PS, as opposed
to another utility in the state that after day eight in Franklin Lakes we
couldn’t get a return phone call or a single truck. Day eight, I made a
phone call to a regional call center for Orange and Rockland and asked why
we didn’t have one single truck. And then I talked to a senior VP who then
talks to a VP of operations, who then calls the Mayor of Franklin Lakes and
says, “Oh, you get the politicians involved; we'll see how long it takes before
you get your trucks there.” And that’s no way for a utility to operate. And
I want to thank PSE&G for taking a much more professional and

diplomatic approach to handling some of these issues.
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The issue about LIPA came up -- about the cannibalization of
worrying about the good management at PSE&G. And you didn’t do
everything right, but you did a lot right, Ralph. And I understand we're
going to learn from this process. My concern, globally, is that if you have
out-of-state utilities and you have this spreading of your talent that goes to
other states, we're concerned. We want to get it right here in New Jersey.
We’re really selfish about that. Like Long Island, New York, other places --
I don’t really care. I care about makings sure that we function -- it’s
structurally sound here in New Jersey before we push this utility into other
areas. S0 I'm concerned about that.

MR. LaROSSA: Well--

SENATOR SARLO: And that goes back to my original
question.

MR. LaROSSA: Yes, look. We know the only way we grow as
an entity and we gain the trust of others is to keep our home base solid.
And that’s why we’re here today. That’s why we’re having this conversation
and you get to see that. Again, I think the processes that we have put in
place, we've done pretty well. We’ve been recognized by industry experts
for some of the work that we’ve done. We put some of those processes in
place, we believe we're going to be able to make an improvement. But I
don’t necessarily think we have to cannibalize the workforce to make that
happen. Those are good people over there in Long Island; they work hard.
I think you saw that. You just have to clean up some of the processes.

SENATOR OTOOLE: Through the Chair, the Chair brought
up the smart meters -- whether it’s going to cost $500 million to $700

million for 2.2 million units; whether a smart grid is a larger task down the
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road. Do all these larger, big-ticket items-- And at some point we should
just sit back as opposed to reacting the day after or the week after. I think
we just need to have a real significant conversation about what we’re going
to do to prepare New Jersey for the next 10, 20, and 30 years. I don’t think
we’ve done that.

My question to you is that after Irene, lessons were learned.
Did any of those lessons that were learned -- were they implemented so we
could prevent some of the mishap in Sandy? Or was it just a different
operation, or a different circumstance?

MR. LaROSSA: So some of those were implemented.
Unfortunately, again, we sandbagged the wrong switching stations. We
listened to what we had learned from Irene and we tried to react to that.
We did have more communications than ever. We had those meetings, as
you mentioned, with the mayors face-to-face. We also had daily’phone calls
with mayors. We also had daily phone calls with the media to provide
access. I took part in those every single day personally. So we were trying
to be more upfront from the communications standpoint; not enough. In
this day and age, Twitter is what we need to get down to that individual
level -- by individual customer. We have 50,000 Twitter followers now as a
result of the storm. We just have to rethink the way we are communicating
to folks. We understand that. I don’t have the right answers -- I'm an
engineer. We'll figure that out. So we'll do that. So we did some of it, but
not everything was implemented that I was hoping to do; and that last piece
was that communication piece. We were trying to get that done; we just
haven’t had those system upgrades made into our IT system yet. But a lot

of the base plans were -- the communications were improved to some
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degree. The storm hardening was done. And where we worked well with
municipalities we got additional tree trimming done.

SENATOR OTOOLE: Well, to that end, you tallkk about
communication. We had constant communication. I mean, I dealt with
Essex, Passaic, Bergen, Morris -- we had some of the folks who were calling
their local folks, and their e-mails were forwarded. They weren’t
responding, and your phones were jammed up. And I get it. But you have
to train your folks, Ralph, that at the end of the day or during the day,
dump your phone messages, and go on and go and go on. You have to have
this-- And we were trying to scope and trying to serve as a local hub for our
15 towns -- some of it worked well and some of it didn’t. But you have to, I
think, have a better line of communication from the top down -- what’s out,
what’s not. And you have to have a better call back, I think, with some of
your folks.

MR. LaROSSA: I totally agree with you, Senator.

SENATOR O'TOOLE: With regard to the 700 workers, who
made that determination those 700 workers on a normal day is enough of a
workforce? Maybe it’s 800, maybe it’s 900?

MR. LaROSSA: Yes, I mean, at the end of the day, I'm
accountable for that. So we made that determination based upon a peak of
thunderstorm activity that would come through, and so on. Again, I would
look at our workforce, over time. We've actually increased the number of
line personnel based upon some of the work that we’ve done at our utility.
We work closely with our IBW to identify a normal workforce, year in and

year out. So we look at that based upon that workload that we have.
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Sometimes you'll have peaks and valleys, and that’s when we bring in some
of these foreign crews.

SENATOR O'TOOLE: Ralph, through the Chair -- I mean, the
Senate President brought it up. He said the storms -- the 100-year storms
we shouldn’t be getting, we’re getting ever few years. So maybe that 700-
person model was set for a time where we wouldn’t have these eight or nine
colossal storms that we’ve seen in the last three or four years. Ireally think
you have to revisit that.

My question is-- And you made a determination that you need
1,000 other workers from out-of-state. I think you made a determination
on a certain day, and JCP&L may have come a day or two later. When did
you make the determination that we had to have an extra 1,000 line
workers’ boots on the ground in New Jersey? And was it done quickly
enough?

MR. LaROSSA: Yes, well it was done quickly enough because
we actually had the people in the hotels bedded down in advance of the
storm. So we did get them here in advance. I want to say it was the
Tuesday or Wednesday before the storm hit that we made that
determination. And, again, it was based upon the forecast that we had at
that time.

SENATOR OTOOLE: Chair, I'll leave, but I have a bunch of
other questions. At a future date I'm going to have a sit-down; I just had a
conversation with Andrew Henry. With some of the utilities -- larger, big
policy issues I want to have a face-to-face. I don’t want to just take up the
time of the Budget Committee right now, okay?

SENATOR SARLO: Thank you.
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Let me just-- I did not request Orange and Rockland to be
here. I will make a request for them. We're trying to make sure we cover
all bases here, so I will make a request for them to appear before us, at one
of the future hearings that we have, separately.

Senator Ruiz, and then question to Senator Cunningham, and
then Senator Greenstein. And then we're going to move on to JCP&L. 1
would just ask everybody to try to cover new territory here, please.

SENATOR RUIZ: Thank you, Chairman.

Thank you, Ralph. I just want to echo the sentiment of my
colleagues. It was a difficult time; thanks to you, Josie (phonetic spelling)
and Raph (phonetic spelling), whose cell phone I had blowing up during the
entire process, but were very responsive.

One conversation that you haven’t asked this delegation, that
hasn’t come up today, was about the difference between Irene and this
storm -- fresh water versus salt water and the impact, short term. And what
PSE&G is potentially doing right now, because we could see some
subsidiary kind of reaction to the corrosion.

MR. LaROSSA: Right. Senator, two things: Last night, as an
example, we had around 9,000 customers out of power as a result of that
small rainstorm and windstorm that came through. All were restored
quickly, but that’s not normal for us. We would normally have 2,000 to
3,000 out in an event like that. The system is weakened -- so the overhead
system is weakened. We're going to be doing patrols and infrareds that we
do on a regular basis, but we're going to increase that as we go into the
summer months. My biggest concerns right now are those switching

stations and substations that were impacted with the saltwater. Not only
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did we have saltwater impact that, but we all forget about the 350,000-
gallon diesel spill that took place. So we have all of those contaminants
that entered into the system -- the saltwater, the oil. We’ve gone out and
cleaned them up as best we can, but they are in a weakened state. The
analogy I use -- and I used it even before the meeting -- it’s like dropping a
transistor radio, when we were growing up, in a puddle at the beach. You
wipe it off, it works for a little while; but at some point it’s going to fail on
you as it corrodes. We have to go back and make those final and
permanent repairs, and we're assessing each one of those pieces of
equipment as we speak.

SENATOR RUIZ: And when you're looking at the long-term
investment in the approach of how we’re going to change infrastructure, are
you looking at whether it makes sense to go underground in certain areas of
the state? And I bring that up just because oftentimes we get caught up in
the sense this aesthetic approach -- where our wires are going to go -- and I
know that that creates severe problems in certain towns. People want wires
in the backyard. After the substation is up and the transformers up, then
you have to get into folks” backyards to deal with the tree issue for the
wires.

MR. LaROSSA: Right. So two things: One is, first of all, for
those towns that have them in the backyards, we made the commitment
and we continue to make the commitment, Ill move them out front
tomorrow. They would have better restoration times. It would be much
better if we did that. We’d move them tomorrow. So that offer stands --

we’d start that process. I know it’s very challenging because of the optics
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for individual homeowners. But that’s the right thing from a restoration
standpoint. |

As far as underground goes, we continue to look at that. But I
would just tell you it’s not the end-all. We saw what happened in lower
Manhattan, and we saw what happened in our own Jersey City waterfront
along Liberty State Park. Those areas were flooded -- they were
underground. And they were some of the last to get power. Iknow around
Liberty State Park and that whole area was ravaged. So we need to look at
a balance of those two -- the right solution, we continue to say, is to build
that redundancy up. |

SENATOR RUIZ: And my last question, through the Chair:
The Majority Leader asked about PSE&G having the recognition of where
places of high priority are. Do you have a map that lists this? You know,
one of the last few areas that came up with power was a corner that had
seven gas stations. Are we looking at that long-term? Should we get
electricity up in areas that can provide gas to kind of avoid what ended up
happening? And then I had a nursing home and a few senior houses within
one area that were impacted. And I only say this because, if you don’t have
this available, how is it that we can get to a place where we generate a map
through the State OEM and all of the power and utilities so that there is
some understanding of nursing homes, private senior buildings -- generator
operated, not generated operated -- to help you in the process of
restoration?

MR. LaROSSA: Right. That’s one of the things, I think, we
have to look at going forward and working with the Board of Public

Utilities: How do we get that information and keep it up-to-date. I think
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we can work together to come up with a solution there. But that’s going--
It has to be an ongoing process, not something that we can do once and
leave stagnant.

I'm not sure-- I know there’s a lot of conversations about
making maps available. I don’t necessarily think that’s the right thing to
do, from a security standpoint.

SENATOR RUIZ: No, that conversation came up at our last
hearing. And I was at OEM for several days and I understand that you
don’t want to give that out; it’s potentially-- But I'm talking about a map
that you create for internal purposes. I was toying with the concept to have
some of these sites kind of file their address location with the office of OEM
and with their utility provider. It could be on an annual, biannual basis, to
ensure that you have, kind of, an indicator map where these high priority
sites would be.

MR. LaROSSA: T think it’s going to be a combination of us
updating the maps, keeping that information; as well as some personal
accountability for those building owners on what they need to do, based
upon the customers who they are serving.

SENATOR RUIZ: Thank you.

SENATOR SARLO:  Senator Cunningham, followed by
Senator Greenstein.

SENATOR CUNNINGHAM: Thank you. Good morning.

MR. LaROSSA: Good morning, Senator.

SENATOR CUNNINGHAM: Since the Chairperson has asked

that we talk about topics that have not already been discussed, I'll start
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with one: Are you going to prorate PSE&G bills so that people are not
paying for service that they did not get?

MR. LaROSSA: So what we did-- As you can imagine, we
did-- About a third of our customers did not have a meter reading done
during that month. So what we informed customers -- there were some
press releases; I know Senator Lautenberg put one out, some others -- that
we said prorate on estimated bills. On your regular bill, it’s automatically
taken care of because it’s a pay-for-use. So if you didn’t use the product
you wouldn’t get it. But for those that we estimated the bills for, we
certainly said you should make an estimate on that. It’ll get trued up next
month when we make the actual meter reading. But for this month we told
folks that they should make an estimate. Again, it’s about a third of our
customers.

SENATOR CUNNINGHAM: Okay, great.

The other thing I wanted to ask you: I'm glad that you
mentioned Liberty State Park. Most of Jersey City is refilled land except for
maybe a small part of downtown. And I was going to ask you if you were
going to do some sort of study and to determine beforehand how certain
parts of the state need to be handled in case this happens again.

MR. LaROSSA: Yes, again, like I said before, we just have to
rethink everything. And so we’ll look at that. Some of those areas were
designated underground and they are underground now. Maybe they need
some backup that’s overhead. It might sound crazy, but having that
redundancy in the system might be the right answer. We’'ll look at each

one of those sections.
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SENATOR CUNNINGHAM: It probably does. Downtown
Jersey City is where most of our businesses are -- corporations are -- and
them being out of service for quite a while is very difficult. But it’s also a
problem for the future where we have developmental plans to do more
building in that area.

MR. LaROSSA: No, specifically the Heights and Journal
Square needs to have-- We need to relook at that network.

SENATOR CUNNINGHAM: And where I live, because I live
on the water in Society Hill. (indiscernible) (laughter)

And the last thing I wanted to ask you -- and we have been
beating the horse about communication -- but I have to say if you were to
ask the average citizen of Jersey City or Bayonne right now what was the
most difficult part about this experience, other than the loss or
inconvenience of power, they would have to say it’s the communication.
People called PSE&G to get information. They were told one thing. Even
middle management people, when we reached out to them, said one thing;
and if you went up a little higher they were told something else. I was one
of the people who walked -- ran around, and each and every day going to
senior citizens’ sites or community sites, talking to people. And the
question is: When is this going to come back on? When is this going to be
over? I pick up the phone and call PSE&G and I'm told two days, four
days, an hour, two hours, later tonight. And as you go around the city or
the district and you're telling people this, over and over and over again, it
just makes a bad situation much more frustrating.

MR. LaROSSA: T totally agree with you. Everybody has

different information along that hierarchy that you mentioned. And it’s
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more up-to-date depending upon where you are in that hierarchy. The
more we have the information and technology for this, that I spoke about
earlier, the better. None of the utilities want to provide bad information.
We all want to communicate as quickly as possible. We need that
information from the customer base.

SENATOR CUNNINGHAM: Thank you.

SENATOR SARLO: Okay, Ralph, thank you. I've jotted
down, and we've recorded up here, the three big recommendations:
redundancy, build additional redundancy into system. I'm not sure what
those dollars will be, but we’ll make sure -- we need to do it smart and wise.
We know it’s going to be real dollars. Tree trimming -- working with local
municipalities on the tree trimming; and I think everybody, one way or
another, it was about communication. How do we improve
communication? It seems like that’s one of our biggest failures here, both
as government and as an industry. So I think that’s something-- I think
we’re going to hear that with JCP&L as well.

MR. LaROSSA: Well, again, I want to thank everyone for
having us. And I can’t thank everybody enough. I was very proud to be
from this state.

SENATOR SARLO: Thank you.

Now we’ll call up Donald Lynch, President of Jersey Central
Power and Light. I'm going to ask Mr. Lynch to keep his remarks also brief.

He will be followed by Robert Hanna, President of BPU.

If you could keep your remarks to the point, and then we will
go into questions. I have one question after he opens, and then I’'m going

to turn it over to Senator Greenstein.
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DO NALD M. LYNCH: Thank you, Chairman Sarlo, and thank
you to all the members of the Committee. I appreciate the opportunity to
be here today to talk about Jersey Central’s response to Hurricane Sandy
and some of the things we have going forward.

I do have a few pictures that I would like to just go through.
I'll go through them rapidly. I think sometimes a picture is worth a
thousand words. And maybe with the way I talk here it might be worth
more than that. So hopefully it helps to illustrate some of the things that
we have here.

In terms of a background: Jersey Central serves 1.1 million
customers, and we really serve in two separate regions throughout the State
of New Jersey. We serve 13 of New Jersey’s counties and 236
municipalities.

Sandy, I think, just to talk a little about the size of storm that
hit us here: It really was unprecedented with winds of 75 to 90 miles an
hour. It was nearly 1,000 miles across. And when you look at that
compared to the size of Katrina, for instance, it was more than twice the
size of Katrina in terms of the width of the storm.

The destructive force, some of the reports I've seen, is
equivalent to about five Hiroshima bombs -- is what the force of this
particular hurricane hit us with -- nearly 200 deaths across the U.S. and the
Caribbean.

SENATOR SARLO: Mr. Lynch, I'm not cutting you off.

I understand the magnitude-- We all know how intense the
storm was. I don’t want to be educated on the storm. I know how big the

storm was. I want to know what JCP&L did and what are we currently
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doing to rebuild the-- I appreciate the slides and I appreciate the impact of
the storm. We get that; we all get that.
MR. LYNCH: Okay, all right. Thank you.

Well, what-- You know, Jersey Central’s response to this really
resulted in the largest restoration in our history. We had over 13,000
people here on the ground responding to this storm -- boots on the ground.
We had an additional almost 1,000 people helping us remotely to support
this. Over 8,500 line workers were here supporting the storm. The
statistics are, really, staggering: 1.3 million customer outages is what we
experienced. Many experienced outages twice because the nor’easter hit in
the middle of this particular storm. We had people-- Again, mutual
assistance. We had our meteorological calls before; we were tracking the
storm. We saw what the path of the storm was going to be. Unlike Irene,
which changed paths many times, this storm was predicted to hit New
Jersey and it really came right on track.

So therefore we staged lots of line workers and support here.
We had 4,500 people here in New Jersey by October 29 when the storm
hit, ready to go to work. We had over 1,700 tree cutters here, ready to go
to work; we had 1,400 line workers here, ready to go to work, while we
continued to ask for additional folks to come.

What we did in the storm was we cut 65,000 trees that we had
to go through, and 34,000 hazard trouble locations out there. And if you
look at it, most of those were really trees and wires down. That really
equates to over 140 wires down in every municipality that we serve. So we |

had a lot of people here supporting the storm.
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In terms of staging, we had nine staging sites here to address
the storm -- more than we've ever had. We had seven in New Jersey and
two just on the border of Pennsylvania up in North Jersey to support all of
the workers that we had here to support the storm -- again, the largest ever
in the history of the state.

In terms of communications, I held daily calls with the mayors
to give the update and the progress, and really a process of the storm. We
are also involved with social media. We had Facebook out there where we
had pictures and probably about 20,000 Facebook followers. We had
Twitter; we were tweeting out various updates and responses to all of that.
We increased a lot of that during the storm.

The process which -- if you would just bear with me, because it
speaks to a lot of the communication issues that I think come up -- is our
process is one that is very similar to all the other utilities. We really deal
with restoring the high voltage transmissions lines first. This is the
backbone of our network and this is the power coming from the power
plants, as Ralph had said. And Jersey Central doesn’t have any power
plants. It really, since deregulation, takes power from whoever supplies
that, whether it’s plants in New Jersey or plants outside of New Jersey, they
come through our transmission lines. So that’s the first part that we have
to get up and working. And that’s where our crews were really working in
the first several days of the storm -- is to rebuild those transmission lines.

Then we also work to restore the distribution and feeder lines.
Jersey Central has 1,200 feeder lines; 1,100 of those sustained some sort of
damage. So that’s where our crews go next is to repair those distribution

and feeder lines. And then they work themselves into the neighborhoods
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to get all the little laterals that feed down the streets and neighborhoods to
restore, again, the last customers, which are the services to the particular
houses.

Our priority system is the same -- we give hospitals-- We work
with the Office of Emergency Management, both the State ROIC and the
county OEMs, as was mentioned before, to prioritize those water and sewer
plants, hospitals -- get them all up. And in this storm, it was gas stations
and schools, additional things which, I think, was a learning also in the
storm -- that we were really hustling to get those lists together of all the
schools, of all the gas stations that we had. And I think that was a good
learning in the storm -- that we have to figure out how to put those all
together.

We provided free water and ice; we expanded that program to
over 22 locations in 13 counties.

And I do want to say, to just take the time to thank, really--
We couldn’t have done what we did in terms of restoration without the
support of the Governor and his cabinet, particularly President Hanna at
the BPU. We were in constant communication with him and his staff to
help work as a partner, really, in this restoration effort.

The Commissioners-- Bob Martin at the DEP helped us get
permits that we needed, helped us to prioritize these water and sewer
plants. Commissioner Simpson helped us with prioritizing the roads that
had to be cleared -- the State roads, the county roads. And we worked
together with him. Commissioner Velez of the Human Services helped us
set up two staging sites to help all these out-of-state workers who came with

us as well.
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Additionally, State ROC, Mike Schulz (phonetic spelling), was
a big help to us. We couldn’t have done this without the help of all of the
State agencies, and FEMA, the Army Corps of Engineers and all of that.

And lastly, just a thanks, really, to the IBW. Our workers are
great and our union is great. And working together with them, partnering
with them, we accomplished what I believe is a tremendous restoration in
13 days, without any serious injuries as well. So we’re very proud of that as
well.

Things we're working on: I would agree with some of the
comments that were made. Our territory, if you look at it, we serve some of
the most heavily treed portions of the State of New Jersey. So a lot of the
outages were caused by the high winds from the storm where trees toppled
our infrastructure. Again, 65,000 trees we cut. So we do trim to certain
right-of-ways that are granted by the Board of Public Utilities and we are
held to. And so expanding those right-of-ways into areas where there are
customer-owned trees-- If I had my druthers, what I would ask for help for
is we need to trim trees that cause these outages, but they are outside of our
right-of-ways. And that’s an issue that we need to address.

Communications -- I think you heard about that. We worked
with the BPU after the last two storms last fall--

SENATOR SARLO: Not to interrupt you, but do you have a
dollar amount for what it would cost to do smart meters on all of your
systems, roughly?

MR. LYNCH: Smart meters would cost us over $400 million.

SENATOR SARLO: Okay.
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MR. LYNCH: I might add that in terms of smart meters, with
an infrastructure that is so damaged, the communication network would be
down. So smart meters wouldn’t help us as much during a major storm of
this event. So I think-- I'm a big believer in technology; we have to look at
this smartly to see if investing $400 million in an economy where we are --
is that the best dollar spent? We also have-- You know, you would put out
of work about 150 meter readers for us who would no longer be needed.
And we read a meter for 85 cents a month; these IBW meter readers read a
meter for 85 cents a month and do it without any injuries. I'm very proud
of them. So I think we have to be careful about how we implement that as
well.

Communications -- that’s one of the things we need to work on.
So after the last two storms, we made some improvements. We worked
with the Board of Public Utilities staff, we developed some reports.
Understand how that created more confusion. I think many folks here on
the Committee talked about it already -- it’s difficult to get down to that
individual customer level. And you know, you're in the middle of an
emergency and it’s just not a planned type of outage event; it's one where
you're dealing with emergencies on a daily basis. We do have some
additional thoughts and ideas. We're going to work with President Hanna
on some of those ideas of how we can improve communications.

So that’s really my presentation. Thank you, Chairman.

SENATOR SARLO: Thank you, Mr. President.

Question -- just two quick questions. Barrier island -- I
understand the supply line has been restored to the barrier island. But how

many homes in Monmouth and Ocean counties still are without power?
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MR. LYNCH: There is-- On the barrier island itself there are
probably about 15,000 residences, homes -- meters, let’s say -- that are just
currently being restored. We've started working with the State DCA
Commissioner Constable as well has been helping us with the inspection
process. And we're starting to energize some of those homes on the barrier
island as they make the repairs that are needed. So I'd say we have about
15,000, 12,000 out. We also have flooded areas along the shore areas that
were flooded out -- towns like Belmar, Manasquan, Sandy Hook areas. And
we're working with those local municipal officials as they get their
inspections and we’re able to hook them in. And I'd say we probably have
maybe another 5,000 customers that we’re working with to get those
restored.

SENATOR SARLO: So it’s about 20,000 customers. The
supply line is there but now it’s getting the local inspections and making
sure the houses or the commercial buildings are able to accept the power. Is
that--

MR. LYNCH: That’s correct. All the substations are
energized, the supply line to the substations are energized, and the feeder
lines are energized; now it’s that individual service line going to homes and
businesses.

SENATOR SARLO: I'll turn it over to Senator Greenstein.

One final question: We all recently read that as a result of
Hurricane Irene that JCP&L was requesting a rate increase. And I'm not
questioning; I'll leave that to the Board of Public Utilities and others. Do

you think the timing wasn’t the best timing to announce a rate increase in
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light of what’s going on? We still have 20,000-- I think the timing was a
little bad. Do you agree with me?

MR. LYNCH: I agree, the timing is very unfortunate, but I
would just state to the Committee that we were asked to come in for a rate
case. Jersey Central was not asking or seeking it at that time. And the
Board of Public Utilities asked us to come in--

SENATOR SARLO: Oh, okay. That’s interesting.

MR. LYNCH: --actually file by November 1. We were granted
an extension -- one month extension to December 1. And that’s why we
filed.

SENATOR SARLO: Thank you.

Senator Greenstein, Senator Bucco.

SENATOR GREENSTEIN: Good morning. I'm over here.
How are you doing?

On this issue of communication, obviously all of us have
spoken to it in one way or another. I think that there might not have been
a realization that we legislators are pretty much as much on the frontlines
as mayors. It was more of an emphasis on making sure the mayors had
communication points. But I can tell you I was out there. I was out there
on food trucks. I know many of us were and we were getting lots of
questions, and we had very little information to work with.

I know, just as one example, just one little data point: At one
point I was able-- My district has both utility companies. I was able to get
from PSE&G specific streets in my largest town and where they were

working. And I was never able to get that, to that level, with your
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company. It seemed like they wanted to get it for me, but somehow were
not able to.

Now, I know there are security issues, but can we get
information -- is there a way to get us some type of information on the
switching stations and the substations so we would have some idea which
are affecting our areas? Just as an example, I was at one of the senior
communities in Monroe, and there were all sorts of rumors going around:
Well, maybe it’s the switching station in Perth Amboy; and maybe it’s the
one right here in one of the developments. Nobody knew anything, and
they were all looking to me and I didn’t know anything either. It was
embarrassing and it was difficult to try to help. I had no information on
even which switching and substations affected that particular development.
And that whole issue of order of restoration -- I felt like what I had to do --
what I did do -- was advocate for people. And when I made a phone call
and they got their power back, they attributed it to me. I’'m not sure if that
was the case; I hope it was the case, but we just didn’t know. We tried our
very best to advocate; you know, if someone is in a dangerous situation on
Avenue A, we called it in, then something was done. Hopefully, it was
because we called. But it would have been so much better if we had a real
idea of the order -- I know you may be changing this every day -- but the
order in which you were working. You know, we’re going to be in this town
on this group of streets. If you could get it down to that level and really fill
us in so we could give people the information. And we were really operating
in the dark trying to get people that kind of information.

MR. LYNCH: No, I would agree with you. And that 1s sort of,

our next thing that we need to work on. I mean, for years and years and
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years -- and all utility systems are designed to effect the best and quickest
restoration. I never really thought about, over the years, that people
wanted to know that information. It’s sort of like how the sausage is made.
You really weren’t interested. But, yes, people today are interested in that.
And so certainly we can share the infrastructure. You're fed from this
substation, that substation, there is this transmission lines, and we’re
working on that transmission line which eventually feeds your town. We
can share that information. And then it’s a matter of, during a major storm,
is we have to assess all the damage and figure out what needs to be done
and how eventually we’re going to get to your particular town -- given the
priorities of hospitals and emergency services. So it’s a challenge to do that
in a middle of an emergency, but certainly something Jersey Central is
committed to. And I've spoken already to President Hanna and we want to
sit down and have some ideas.

SENATOR GREENSTEIN: Well, the good thing would be for
us to do it now and not wait for the emergency on so many of these things
that we found. It seems like it could be done now and that would really be
very helpful to us.

One other thing on these policy issues, building redundancy
into the grids, all of the others that we talked about -- what level are we
building to? For example, are these internal discussions that you have or is
this something that you think might be useful to have with the Legislature?

MR. LYNCH: = We're happy to have those with folks. Again,
we take the guidance from what do we want to build to -- again, I think it
was mentioned before -- level 1, level 2, level 3?7 We've already started

developing some plans and some cost estimates about what it is you want to
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do: raise substations, harden the system, you want to put concrete poles in
as opposed to wood poles. We have all those costs.

SENATOR GREENSTEIN: Okay, thank you.

SENATE PRESIDENT SWEENEY: Senator Bucco.

SENATOR BUCCO: Thank you, Senate President; and good
morning, Mr. Lynch, and thank you for coming this morning.

There are several things that I have to say. First of all, I know
each and every day that you had the conference calls with the residents and
-- the elected officials, rather, of the district that I represent. And JCP&L
services all of my towns. And I thought that was a good thing, but also
being on many of those calls, I heard some of our mayors saying where they
had problems within their individual towns. And the answer came back,
“Yes, but it’s on the list. We’'re going to take care of that right away.” One
in particular is where a development was cut off -- couldn’t get emergency
vehicles in there because of downed trees. They wanted to have the utility
at least clear the wires or declare the wires non-active or dead so that their
crews could go in and take out the trees and get emergency vehicles in there
if necessary. And three days later the same complaint came in and, again,
they said, “Yes, that’s at the top of our list and we're doing it right away.”
And it seems that it took quite a few days before that really happened. And
I was a little disappointed in hearing that.

Another complaint that I got -- because we got many
complaints within our office and my home; I got calls even on my cell
phone from constituents. And one, in the neighboring town, saw a crew
working a block away from her home. And she walked over there. It was a

mutual aid crew; it wasn’t a JCP&L crew, it was a mutual aid crew. And she
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said, “Is it possible that we’re going to get electricity back around the
cormer?” And he says, “Miss,” he says, “The grid maps are not up to date.”
He says, “We’re finding all kinds of problems.” My question to you is: Are
those grid maps of JCP&L, FirstEnergy, up-to-date? And if not, why not?

MR. LYNCH: Yes, our grid maps are up-to-date, and we
actually have them all computerized. And we, over the years, had them up-
to-date and our dispatch office deals with those. So it’s hard to deal with
an anecdotal type story, but the only thing that’s dynamic about a
particular electrical system is as, say, things happen on a normal basis -- let’s
say you get a car pole accident on one side, we'll switch those out of normal
configuration to feed those customers from, perhaps, a different circuit. So
if you're on circuit 123, and there’s a problem on that circuit and your
home, I'll switch you onto circuit 567. And so now if you go out under a
paper map, it might look like, “Oh, this is not correct.” But in the office, in
the computer system, it is correct. And, in fact, Jersey Central’s moving
towards-- We're in the middle of putting mobile data terminals in our
trucks. We'll have them all in our trucks by next year, and all those will be
computerized. And so a paper map is only as good as it was the time you
printed it; and things change.

SENATOR BUCCO: Yes, but then that crew working on 123
is not aware that it’s being serviced by 345. Is that correct?

MR. LYNCH: Well, that’s why all crew have to work back to
our dispatch office. And many times you also hear that a crew was sitting
around or waiting. What they’re waiting for is that kind of stuff. We don’t
want them to act on a paper map, many times, unless it’s dead. ‘What we

want them to do is, before you-- If something’s different, you need to call
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the dispatch office and they will give you the up-to-date configurations so
that it’s safe for them to work on that particular area.

SENATOR BUCCO: Okay. And putting the computerized in
your vehicles -- but that does not help the mutual aid vehicles that come in.

MR. LYNCH: That’s correct, Senator. That is an issue when
you have 8,500 line workers who don’t have the system you have. That is
an issue.

SENATOR BUCCO: Okay. And one thing that personally
happened with me: I called in after about three days of being out of power
and a young lady answered the phone. I gave her my address and I said,
“My wife has Parkinson’s and the cold is starting to affect her. Can you
give me some idea of when we will get power back? Her answer was, “Call
9-1-1.” Isaid “Thank you,” and I hung up.

MR. LYNCH: Yes, we handled over -- almost 900,000 calls
from our call center. We train those folks how to be customer service--

SENATOR BUCCO: You didn’t do a good job in training her.

MR. LYNCH: Right. So we review, after the storm-- Senator,
we review all this information and we go back and we’ll provide training.
And we just re-remind folks what we expect out of them, and that is the
best customer service possible. And where there are instances, whether it’s
a call center rep or some of our employees, we’ll train them, coach them,
and expect them to handle it in the proper way. Most of our folks I believe
do; but occasionally I think you'll get something like that. And I apologize
for that.

SENATOR BUCCO: Well, it’s not a problem. We went out

and rented a generator. Thank you.
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Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

- SENATOR SARLO: Senator O"Toole, followed by Senator
Oroho, followed by Senator Beck.
/ SENATOR O'TOOLE: Thank you, Chair.

The issue about the-- I was a little confused about -- you were
testifying about the 185 meter readers that you were concerned about, if
they were laid off, I think, if you had smart meters in place.

MR. LYNCH: That’s correct.

‘SENATOR OTOOLE: I was just-- I was struck by the oddity
of that comment. The reason we're keeping these folks-- If the smart
meters are better, they are a better product and a better service and a better
response time, is it the balance of keeping those 185 jobs in place -- is that
your concern?

MR. LYNCH: Yes, I think it is the balance. It’s 150 people,
but it is the balance-- If you look at an automated meter, there’s-- And I
love technology and it gives you many things. But you would no longer
need the meter readers who go around and take meter readings because it
becomes electronic. And actually those meter readers are a big part of the
storm process. They actually are the folks who go out and we call them
public protectors. They protect downed wires. But you are right; that is the

balance.

SENATOR OTOOLE: Through the Chair, a lot of common
issues about communication. I appreciate the one conversation I had with
you after I, out of frustration, called the BPU President to say we have such
a disconnect. Your local folks were nowhere to be found. You really had--

It was like we were living in the Stone Age. And I don’t say that to be
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sarcastic or hurtful; it was really hard to talk to the Mayor of Riverdale for
10 or 12 days with no service. And they had folks who were trying to pick
up a live wire just to get it out of the street and they could try to resume
some normal process in the town -- that we couldn’t get a truck from
JCP&L in Riverdale. This is really hard to understand.

And T heard that one of the folks questioned you about the
appropriate timing of this rate increase. And you said that BPU was asking
for it some time during the summer; obviously it wasn’t with an eye towards
when Sandy landed. And you asked for a 30 day-- My guess is BPU would
have put forward an adjournment, or adjourned this through December or
January or February had you asked. It’s a real stick in the eye, Mr.
President, to have to sit here and try to field calls from my constituents that
your folks are asking for a $31 million increase when some of us are barely
getting our lights on right now. It’s hard to understand that. And it’s
insulting in many ways, and it’s coarse in many ways. And I think that you
have to have -- be a better business partner in this state.

And this concern that I have that the out-of-state utilities are
sticking the profits in suitcases and shipping them out-of-state, whether--
The reports we read in the Star- Ledger about FirstEnergy having $149
million of net profit in 2012 . Well, maybe some of those profits have to be
kept here in New Jersey where they are generated. Maybe you need more
line workers; maybe you need more infrastructure; maybe you need a better
inventory, an investment in you communication’s bank. Because a lot of
things went wrong, and a lot of it JCP&L went wrong. Orange and
Rockland -- disaster. JCP&L -- some was okay, some was a disaster. And

you have to bear some responsibility. And I know we said we learn we learn
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we learn. I think the people are tired of hearing they’re learning. Like this
learning curve has got to stop. After Irene, did we learn something? Did we
retain something? After Sandy, do we have to revisit these same problems
again? It gets really hard to deal with these folks who are desperate. And
to hear Tony Bucco talk about your customer service -- your 9,000 (sic) -- 1
don’t care if you get 8 million calls. One person who says “call 9-1-1”
because his wife has a serious condition? You've got to deal with the
structure -- the internal structure -- in the communication. It’s a disaster.

SENATOR SARLO: Senator OToole, I know you’re upset and
I know you're anxious. If we could just stay on questions; I'd appreciate
questions.

SENATOR O'TOOLE: Sure. What are you going to do coming
out of here?

SENATOR SARLO: Keep it to questions.

SENATOR O'TOOLE: Well, first of all-- Question: You take
direction from home office as to how many people should be working for
JCP&L during a given day or given night or given storm. Where do you get
your marching orders from?

MR. LYNCH: My responsibility is to run and operate Jersey
Central Power and Light. Yes, it is within the FirstEnergy system; but we
work with the Board of Public Utilities on all the issues that you talked
about: the investment, the reliability that we must provide, the staffing, and
all of that. And our books are open and we discuss all of that. And quite
frankly, we have the resources, we have the people to be able to accomplish

what we need to accomplish.
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SENATOR O'TOOLE: You think you have the resources, after
what we just experienced with Sandy? You think you dedicated -- JCP&L
dedicated enough resources to combat the problems we saw, whether they
were foreseen or unforeseen? We all dealt with it. You're telling me, with
hindsight 20/20, that JCP&L dedicated enough time and money and
resources to deal with the storm?

MR. LYNCH: Well, what I am saying is we can always be
better, but I am proud of the effort that during a storm of this magnitude,
with 1.3 million outages -- restored in, really, 13 days after the storm
passed. There was AP articles -- not my articles -- that talked about the
comparison of all New Jersey utilities and the fact that all utilities restored
customers of this magnitude quicker or at least at the same time as Katrina
and Hurricane Rita.

SENATOR OTOOLE: Well, I have to tell you that you saw,
we all have seen, our hard-charging Governor out there front and center.
He was demanding accountability every day, having conferences with you
folks to make sure you had accountabilities and you had run rates every day
to justify who was in and who was out. I would venture to say if we didn’t
have that hard-charging, take-charge Governor, we’d still be out of power in
some of the areas. And I'm not being sarcastic about it. And it’s the first
time, in literally 18 years that I've been here, you've seen such a proactive
Governor working with the utilities. And I think we need to see more of
that.

Thank you, Chair.

SENATOR SARLO: Folks, I'm going to remind everybody:

Questions for the utility execs-- If you want to have dialogue off-line, please
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do so. This Committee is for questions pointed to the members. I want to
make sure we stay on that. In all fairness to the CEO and others who have
made time to be here, I want to stay on questions. This is a learning
process, as we go forward. I know there is a lot of frustration but, again,
let’s please keep it to questions.

Senator Beck, and then Senator Oroho; and then we’re going to
move on to the BPU.

SENATOR BECK: First, I wanted to note that I think Julie
Strout and I probably talked more than I talked to my own family for those
couple of weeks, and that she certainly did a good job, the best she could,
with what information she had. And I don’t have to tell you what a great
professional she is.

We have a couple of things that I want to raise, and that is that
at the local level we have methods of communication out to the residents
that are already in place that can be and should be utilized. And many of
our towns are using reverse 9-1-1. Many of our towns have the ability to
text message residents, in addition to the Facebook and Twitter. And so my
question is, is there the possibility that a local level -- because I know one of
the requests that I've made and our mayors have made is that JCP&L has a
local representative -- well, maybe not in each town, but, say, three or four
towns -- that local representatives will work with the OEM to identify our
key assets, so senior centers, etc., obviously hospitals-- Once you get
beyond hospitals then there is a whole other subset that we need to make
sure that you know. And we have the ability to give that-- But I would like
to think that we could also then work with you on the communications

piece, because frankly, in the Borough of Red Bank, our fire and police went
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out and handed out paper fliers to every single resident to-- And there’s no
reason why we couldn’t have worked with you to say, “Layton Avenue and
West Sunset are going to be out for another five days,” and handed out that
piece of paper, right? So I want to ask you if you'd be willing to work with
some of our folks on better defining that. Because I don’t know enough
about the smart-whatever -- the technology that you talked about
implementing at the household -- but I know that we have methods in place
right now to communicate with individual residents. So it may not require
you to do that, but we do need you as a partner with our mayors. And I
just wanted to ask if that’s possible, if you think we could have a local
representative assigned, broken down regionally, that we can work with and
bring our OEM folks and work with JCP&L.
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